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Date of Issuance: 

 Yes, to: CST/CDT

Amendment of Solicitation 

State of Oklahoma 
Office of Management and Enterprise 
Services/ ISD Procurement 

Solicitation No. 8300001090 

Requisition No. 83000021580 Amendment No. 002 

Hours and date specified for receipt of offers is changed: No

Pursuant to OAC 580:15-4-5©, this document shall serve as official notice of amendment to the Solicitation identified 
above. Such notice is being provided to all suppliers to which the original solicitation was sent. Suppliers submitting bids 
or quotations shall acknowledge receipt of this solicitation amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the 
solicitation as follows: 

(1) Sign and return a copy of this amendment with the solicitation response being submitted; or, 
(2) If the supplier has already submitted a response, this acknowledgement must be signed and returned prior to the 

solicitation deadline. All amendment acknowledgements submitted separately shall have the solicitation number 
and bid opening date printed clearly on the front of the envelope. 

ISSUED BY AND RETURN TO: 

Office of Management and Enterprise Services 

ISD Procurement Attn: Hurtisine Franklin 
3115 N. Lincoln Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73105 

Contracting Officer 

Hurtisine Franklin 

Phone Number  
(405) 521-6419 

E-Mail Address 
Hurtisine.Frankln@omes.ok.gov 

Description of Amendment: 
a. This is to incorporate the following: 
Submitted by M. Brinkman 

Question: For the required onsite training, will OKDHS provide for appropriate training facilities, i.e. meeting space, 
computers, etc. for both OKDHS staff and Provider Agencies? 

Response: Please refer to Section C.6. of the RFP 

The proposed solution must include a description of the recommended training required to have a full, working knowledge 
of the application software. On-site trainings will be finalized during the project kickoff meeting. 

 Please refer to the following: Section C.6.8. Any requirements OKDHS is expected to provide  

As prescribed by this section in the RFP Bidders should include “Any requirements OKDHS is expected to provide” 

C .6.Training Plan 

The proposed solution must include a description of the recommended training required to have a full, working knowledge 
of the application software. On-site trainings will be finalized during the project kickoff meeting. OKDHS has identified 
training two distinct training groups: OKDHS staff OKDHS Provider Network (Service providers contracting with OKDHS) 

C.6.1. On-site training, shall take place within 30 days of initial installation. 

C.6.2. On-site training is required training within 90 days of data conversion 
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C.6.3. Periodic –on-going training must be available for updates and new features 

C.6.4. Offeror will identify any additional personnel that should be included in the training. 

C.6.5. Any options regarding the amount of training 

C.6.6. Distinguish the advantages of each successive option 

C.6.7. For any additional training the offeror should include the proposed training environment, for example on-site, web, 
or other 

C.6.8. Any requirements OKDHS is expected to provide 

Submitted by  M. Brinkman 

Question: Regarding Section B.10.3, Claims Submission, does "claims" here refer to an electronic 837 claims file?  If not, 
please define. 

Response: Claims are submitted to the Health Care Authority for payment via an electronic file.   

Question: Regarding C.3.6.8. on page 27, which states "Ability to create date and name and last update date and name", 
can the State please clarify this requirement? 

Response: This section C.3.6. Identifies the functionality that the system software should have.  The software should, for 
example be able to capture provider, and client data.  

Question: Regarding Section C.3.5.3 which states "the successful contractor will develop and maintain a web-based 
system for authorized Service provider and/or Oklahoma Department of Human Services user log-on and data entry".  
Can the State please provide examples of data that OKDHS would be entering via the web-based system? 

Response: The data entry should have the same functionality for both the Provider and DHS.  

Submitted by Kelly Goeres 

1. Question: Section A.45 Conflict of Interest, page 12 – This section states that contractors and their employees 
performing services for the State “are required to disclose any outside activities or interests that conflict or may conflict 
with the best interests of the State.”  Can you please elaborate on the types of activities or interests that the State 
considers to be conflicts? 

1. Response: Contractor must disclose any contractual relationship or any other relevant contact with any State 
personnel, or other State contractors involved in the development of this solicitation that result in a contract.  Any conflict 
of interest shall, at the sole discretion of State, be grounds for termination of project involvement; provided that such 
termination must be made within a reasonable time after disclosure of such relationships or contacts 

2. Question: Can the service level agreements be defined in the contract negotiations? 

2. Response: 

a) Reference Section - E.9.3 of the RFP 

Note: Any software licensing, maintenance, or service agreements the offeror requires, should they be the successful 
contractor, not submitted with contractor’s original offer shall not be considered 

If negotiations are required the following will apply:   

b) Reference Section D.3. Competitive Negotiations of Offers of the RFP 

The State of Oklahoma reserves the right to negotiate with one, selected, all or none of the vendors responding to this 
solicitation to obtain the best value for the State.  Negotiations could entail discussions on products, services, pricing, 
contract terminology or any other issue that may mitigate the State’s risks.  The State shall consider all issues negotiable 
and not artificially constrained by internal corporate policies.  Negotiation may be with one or more vendors, for any and 
all items in the vendor’s offer. 
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3. Question: Section B.10.1.2, page 21 -- Please define and provide examples of the tasks referenced in this section.  
Please provide a definition of ‘on-going maintenance.’  Does on-going maintenance include windows operating system 
updates, service packs, patches, database maintenance, etc.? 

3. Response: Ongoing maintenance refers to issues that need to be addressed with the proposed solution 

See underlined sections. 

Please reference Section C.9. Maintenance/ Support 

C.9. Maintenance/Support 

The proposed solution shall provide Ongoing Maintenance/Support during the performance of the contract.  Support is 
required for ongoing maintenance, including but not limited to, standards and process updates. 

C.9.1. Upgrades and/or  changes to any part of the system that will affect workers’ ability to check in or check out, the 
changes must be scheduled after 9:00 PM CST and before 5:00 AM CST, unless a different time is agreed upon by both 
parties.  Service providers and Oklahoma Department of Human Services staff must be notified by e-mail twelve (12) 
hours prior to any scheduled maintenance 

C.9.2. Offer shall provide a detailed Help desk description 

C.9.3. Identification of and contact information (name; title; address; telephone and fax numbers; and e-mail address) for 
progressively higher levels that would become involved in resolving a problem, 

C.9.4. Contact information (same as above) for persons responsible for resolving issues after normal   business hours 
(i.e., evenings, weekends, holidays, etc.) and on an emergency basis 

C.9.5. Support availability (days of the week and time) 

C.9.6. Software configuration and any new software release, software patch update or software upgrade. 

C.9.7. Offer shall list the frequency of product upgrades and patches made to current platform. Are upgrades and patches 
optional or mandatory? 

C.9.8. Ongoing maintenance shall be quoted both monthly and quarterly, although it shall be invoiced/paid quarterly. 

4. Question: Section B.10.1.6, page 21 – Please provide a definition of response time.  How will this be measured? 

4. Response: B.10. Identified Costs--“The successful contractor agrees that if  there are failures that so negatively impact 
customers and members that no advance notification will be provided before damages are imposed, these shall be 
agreed upon by the Oklahoma Department of Human Services and contractor prior to award of the contract” 

5. Question: Section B.10.1.7, page 21 – This section also appears to be referenced in Section 10.3.5.  If this is accurate, 
can 10.1.7 be deleted? 

5. Response: These are distinctly different 

B.10.1.7 Refers to “update status of system problem”… B.10.3.5. Refers to “system goes down” 

a) B.10.1.7. $100 per occurrence of failure to update status of system problem 

b) B.10.3.5.Contractor must notify OKDHS Project Manager or designee and Service Providers and by e-mail within 30 
minutes at any time the system goes down and again when it is available for use 

6. Question: Section B.10.1.8, page 21 – How much elapsed time would constitute a delay? 

6. Response: Data is transferred daily- Any delays or time lapses more than 24 hours would constitute a delay. 

7. Question: Section B.10.1.9, page 21 – This section also appears to be referenced in Section 10.1.4.  If this is accurate, 
can 10.1.9 be deleted? 

7. Response: No, it cannot be deleted, these are separate incidents, 
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B.10.1.4. Twenty-four (24) hours to hours to transmit missing data files or to submit corrected files for previously 
transmitted files that contained inaccurate information.  The State may impose identified costs in the amount of $5,000 per 
occurrence after the first twenty-four hour cycle has elapsed. 

B.10.1.9. $500 per day for claims not submitted 

8. Question: Section B.10.1.12, page 21 – Can you please more clearly define the items that would be in the scope of 
this SLA? 

8. Response: All items are defined and identified in Section B.10.1 through B.10.3.6 

Implementation, Reporting, IVRA or EVV Failure, Claims Submission, Project Management, Transfer or Data, Time 
Lapses/Structures, Response Times, OKDHS Research Requirements/Assistance, etc, 

Failure to meet contract performance standards included in the contract.   

B.10. “The Offeror agrees to the importance of the resulting contract and performance standards agreed to herein. The 
parties may elect to use any or all remedies available to them on default whether set forth above or otherwise available to 
them by law”.    

9. Question: Section B.10.3.3, page 22 – Please explain the proration reference in this section.  How will the identified 
costs of the prorated amount be calculated? 

9. Response: The dollar amount will be calculated based upon the percentage of overall claims not successfully submitted 
for the day when there was a failure to submit 

10. Question: Section B.10.3.5, page 22 – The response time in this section seems to be in conflict with the time listed in 
B.10.3.1.  Can you please confirm if the 60-minute response time can be used in this section, so that response times are 
consistent? 

10. Response: These two items are distinctly different and the response time will have different effect and or impact 
according to the occurrence. 

B.10.3.1. States, “Any report of a problem” and B.10.3.5 states, “the system goes down”.   

a) B.10.3.1.Responsiveness to problems  

Contractor must have telephone support for this system to be available on a 24/7 basis.  Any report of a problem from a 
Service provider or Oklahoma Department of Human Services will be logged and a status update shall be given within 60 
minutes of the report.  In the event the problem is reported by a Service provider, designated Oklahoma Department of 
Human Services staff must be included on the response.   

b) B.10.3.5. Contractor must notify OKDHS Project Manager or designee and Service Providers and by e-mail within 30 
minutes at any time the system goes down and again when it is available for use.  There will impose identified costs at a 
rate of $500 for each 0.01% percentage point below system availability requirements of 99.9% daily scheduled availability 
assessed over each one month period 

11. Question: Section B.10.3.5, page 23 – The system availability SLA reference in this section is also addressed in 
Section 10.2.  Can Section 10.3.5 be deleted? 

11. Response: No, it may not be deleted.  The check in check out feature of the system may not necessarily mean the 
system as a whole has failed.   

12. Question: Section C.3.6.4, page 27 – Please clarify this requirement.  Is OKDHS looking for a browser based 
administrative site that can be accessed by all internet connected workstations, or are you looking for a more integrated 
solution accessible only though the State’s equipment, like a Single Sign-On solution? 

12. Response: OKDHDS is seeking procurement and implementation of a vendor hosted web-based solution 

Please refer to Section C.1- Overview of the RFP 

 Page 4 of 8 
 



 

 

State of Oklahoma 
Office of State Finance 
Information Services Division 

Solicitation 

 
For the purposes of electronic billing through the use of an Interactive Voice Response Authentication (IVRA) or Electronic 
Visit Verification (EVV) system. Using caller ID technology, the IVRA/EVV software will allow OKDHS contracted provider 
staff to check-in and check-out via telephone interaction, and the software will accommodate manual data entry and 
editing for billing purposes.   

13. Question: Section C.3.6.15, page 27 – Please explain the requirements on providers submitting their schedules.  Is 
the State expecting that providers will submit a file based schedule through an FTP site or web upload page, or will this be 
a more integrated solution using web services?  Can OKDHS identify what solutions are being used by providers to 
generate schedules? 

13. Response: The proposed solution must eliminate the need for providers to duplicate efforts in entering worker   
schedules into their own system and the Vendors system.  

Please reference the following Sections of the RFP C.3.3 –(System Service Delivery) Subsection  c) Capture visit and 
scheduling information in order to identify service delivery including back-up service delivery failures and assist Service 
Providers 

Database Requirements can be found in Section G of the RFP. 

Refer to Columns 1 and 2 > Worker Registration> Required Data Transmission Records 

Worker Registration 

The Offeror must develop and maintain a database containing worker registration data.  The record must contain 
information such as, but not limited to  

Required Data Transmission Records  

Data transmitted by Oklahoma Department of Human Services or its agent 

Bidders are required to provide description/detail information of how their proposed solution has the capability to meet or 
exceed this requirement.  Bidders are required to submit proposal that meet requirements as stated. 

Please refer to the following Section 3.6 (Web-based Date entry System Functionalities) Subsections C3.6.1. –C3.6.4 

The proposed solution must meet or exceed the following:   

C.3.6.1. Provide an easy to use web-based service scheduling interface that supports Service provider entry of scheduled 
service visits specific to member, worker, service, and service date, begin time, and end time. 

C.3.6.2. Scheduling database must be integrated with a web monitoring dashboard screen display of status and off-line 
data downloads or reports to indicate visit final disposition. 

C.3.6.3. Administrative terminal functionality shall include multi-level access controls to ensure that only authorized 
individuals can process administrative transactions or access member account information through administrative 
terminals 

C.3.6.4. Administrative terminal support through a browser based administrative terminal that conforms to Oklahoma 
Department of Human Services communications protocols and is accessible through the current state equipment. 

14. Question: Section C.5 (b, c, and d), page 28 – It appears that items c and d are the same as item b.  Should we 
respond to each of these, or is it acceptable to only respond to item b? 

14. Response: Bidders will disregard item c and respond to items a & b only 

15. Question: Section C.3.6.20, page 28 – This requirement does not appear to be complete. Please clarify what is 
meant by “For certain service encounters”. 

15. Response: Service providers will use the web interface to enter data into the IVRA system.  In these cases, the web 
must show all authorized services meeting defined criteria and allow the Service provider to enter the service visit start 
time and end time for any service authorized.  The web-screen must also show the Service20. 
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16. Question: Section E.9.1 Deliverables, page 34 – This section states that exceptions to solicitation terms and 
conditions should be submitted as part of Section One in our response; Are there any sections in the RFP where 
exceptions may not be taken? 

16. Response: Bidders may list and submit any exceptions at their discretion- 

17.Question: Section E.9.2.4, E.9.2.5, E.9.2.6, page 35 – Is it the State's intention for Offeror’s to provide references to 
meet all three of these similar reference requirements? Is the only difference between E.9.2.5 and E.9.2.6 the timeframe 
in which the implementation has taken place? 

17. Response:  

a) E.9.2.4. – 5- References -Where the same work was performed (exact)-  

b) E.9.2.5 - 3- References- Same or Similar Work performed in the past 36 month –  

c) E.9.2.6.-3- References – where the bidder’s proposed solution and services is currently in use by an organization. 

18. Question: Section E.9.2.8, page 35 – Please clarify the difference between references required in this section and 
references required in sections E.9.2.5 and E.9.2.6. 

18. Response: Section 3 - Section Three – Company Information 

Requires 3 - Professional References from comparative organizations which the bidders company has performed the 
following  

Implementation, hosting, services; data integration of an IVR System successfully implemented and provided by your 
Company (must include at least one non- government entity reference). 

At least one must be non- government entity 

19. Question: From time to time we contract with individuals or small consulting firms to provide services to us in an 
augmentation role.  We may use this non-employee, independent consultants to provide a portion of the proposed 
services for this project.  Would the State consider these non-employee consultants to be subcontractors as that term is 
used throughout the RFP? 

19 Responses: Yes- the awardee of the resulting contract i is the primary participant 

Please refer to the following of the RFP –Section B.3 Subsection B.3.1. 

B.3.1.The contractor may use sub-contractors in support of this contract; however, the contractor shall remain solely 
responsible for the performance of this contract.    

a) Subcontract/ Subcontractor =Work on contract with a person or company who is a contractor to somebody else 

b) Subcontract/Subcontractor = A secondary contract in which the person or company originally hired in turn hires 
somebody else to do all or part of the work 

20. Question: Section F.1.4 Total Project Costs, Page 36 – In the cost proposal, does the State wish to see a breakdown 
of all Staffing costs for each staff member supporting EVV or can this be summarized for all staff supporting EVV? 

20. Response: Reference the following Section of the RFP - F. PRICE AND COST 

All information relating to costs are to be sent separate, in a sealed binder/envelope, and clearly annotated as “Cost 
Proposal.” (E.9.9. Pricing) 

Supplier shall be compensated by a single, flat rate for products/services provided under this solicitation. The rate shall be 
inclusive of all Supplier costs.  Supplier shall submit a proposed price for all products/services proposed which shall 
constitute the entire compensation due to the successful contractor for the products/services described in this solicitation, 
regardless of the difficulty, materials or equipment required, and shall include all applicable taxes, fees, overhead, profits, 
travel, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the supplier.  Cost proposal must be submitted 
in excel format.    The list of provided items is not all inclusive, if additional cost related items can be added to convey 

 Page 6 of 8 
 



 

 

State of Oklahoma 
Office of State Finance 
Information Services Division 

Solicitation 

 
additional project costs, expand list as needed.    If information for a specific item is not applicable, then insert “n/a” in that 
area. 

21. Question:  What is the anticipated growth rate of participants in the ADvantage and SPPC programs respectively, 
over a 5-year period? 

21. Response: Current projections are not yet available, but typically SPPC is expected to grow at a much slower overall 
rate as compared to ADvantage.    

22. Question: Section, Page 36 – Supplier shall be compensated by a single, flat rate for products/services provided 
under this solicitation. Is the State looking for a firm fixed price over the life of the contract for budget purposes? 

22. Response: Reference the following RFP Section A.12.Firm Fixed Price General Terms and Conditions  

A.12. Unless the solicitation specifies otherwise, an offeror shall submit a firm, fixed price for the term of the contract. 

23. Question: Section F.1 Initial Cost, Page 36 - Is the State willing to consider alternative transaction pricing that allows 
them to only pay for transactions that are processed and to benefit from economies of scale? 

23. Response: Transactional items are not anticipated in the resulting contract. Claim /Submission/Data will be exported 
to the Oklahoma Health Care Authority for processing. 

Please refer to Section C- Overview of the RFP 

C.1.Overview 

The State of Oklahoma Office Of Management and Enterprise Services (OMES)/ISD Procurement is seeking procurement 
and implementation on behalf of the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) ADvantage Waiver and State 
Plan Personal Care programs a vendor hosted web-based solution for the purposes of electronic billing through the use of 
an Interactive Voice Response Authentication (IVRA) or Electronic Visit Verification (EVV) system. Using caller ID 
technology, the IVRA/EVV software will allow OKDHS contracted provider staff to check-in and check-out via telephone 
interaction, and the software will accommodate manual data entry and editing for billing purposes.  Resulting claim data 
will be transferred via an electronic file to the Oklahoma Health Care Authority.   The system must be customizable and 
configuration/modifications are expected, the OKDHS and the successful contractor will discuss in detail the required 
customization/modifications and will be approved by OKDHS on a case-by-case basis. The successful Contractor will 
develop a continuity plan to seamlessly transition from current system in use prior to implementation 

24. Question: What is the anticipated award and contract execution date for this bid? 

24. Response: A date of award has not been determined  

25. Question: Section C.3.5.1.1 – b and c, Page 26 - Does the State prefer that multi-client and multi-service visits are 
recorded on separate check in/out flows as they are in the current Oklahoma EVV or is the preference that multiple clients 
and services be recorded on a single check in/out recording? 

25. Response: C.3.5.1.1. Offeror shall describe how the proposed solution will perform the following 

The requirement of the RFP is that the bidder will describe how their proposed solution will perform the mandatory 
requirements as prescribed in the RFP.  Please note the overall result is not subject to Preference. 

26. Question: Section C.3.4 System Data Delivery/Transfer – d, Page 25 - Does the capability to transmit all data from 
the IVRA/EVV to OKDHS need to be complete during the 60 day implementation phase or would the archiving occur after 
implementation (archive data quarterly after “Go-Live,” for example)? 

26. Response: No, archival data is not expected to be transferred to OKDHS within the 60 day implementation phase 

This is an on-going process and part of the daily activities and would be a separate function from implementation 
requirements 

Please refer to Section C.3.4. (System Data Delivery/Transfer) of the RFP  
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The proposed solution must be able to perform the following: 

a) Bilaterally transfer data via a secure FTP transfer file or otherwise have a protocol in place to securely transfer all 
necessary data in an appropriate and agreed upon format.  

b) Receive data from OKDHS or its designee on a daily basis.  These data include participant, Service provider, service 
authorization, and other information necessary to maintain an Interactive Voice Response Authentication or Electronic 
Visit Verification system.  

c) Receive, at a minimum, all the data fields contained in Attachment B.  The IVRA will   have all data transmitted on  the 
previous day available by 5AM Central Standard Time.  

d) Capability upon request to transmit all data from the IVRA or EVV to OKDHS or to a third party designated by OKDHS 
to receive the data, in the format as specified 

Submitted by Ken Pilecek 

1. Question: The end of section C.1 refers to a continuity plan to transition from a current system in use.  What is that 
system?  If it's the Waiver Management System, please describe the current version of OKDHS's Waiver Management 
System and its data structures. 

1. Response: The intent here is that the awardee should they be the awarded Vendor shall develop a transition plan to 
the newly proposed, accepted and contracted  system that will allow seamless transition to that system  from the system 
that is currently in place; transition must take place without  interruption to the daily business and processes.  Bidders 
must be able to prepare and present a plan that will ensure the prescribed transition. 

Please reference Sections C.1. (Overview) and Work/Implementation of the RFP 

C.1 Overview 

The successful Contractor will develop a continuity plan to seamlessly transition from current system in use prior to 
implementation.    

C.4. Implementation/Workplan 

Offeror shall submit a proposed implementation and support plan solutions and processes 

C.4.1. Offeror shall submit a brief narrative describing the Offeror’s capabilities, including a summary work plan and 
project timeline, based from an estimated date of award, and any proposed interim milestones.  The offeror must specify 
in the implementation- work plan, the tasks and activities that are to be undertaken, as well as identifying responsibility for 
completion of each activity and task. 

C.4.2. Offeror must submit a proposed work plan that will minimize system down-time or malfunction, includes estimated 
timelines for staged implementation, testing and will meet the expected effective date (Go Live) no more than 60 days 
after contract award.  . Offeror must propose an approach and/or a methodology to be utilized for implementing each 
deliverable describe in the Solicitation Requirements/Specifications, and shall provide samples of work relevant to each 
deliverable. Implementation/Workplan shall include a detailed Data Conversion/Transfer Plan 

C.4.3. The proposed approach must specify resources which will be required from OKDHS to accomplish tasks contained 
within the work plan 

2. Question: Several times in section C it states that the solution must be customizable (C.1, C.3.1, C.3.5).  Who 
specifically will be doing the customization?  Vendor, IT staff, DHS users? 

2. Response: The awardee should they be the awarded Vendor will be responsible for the customization 
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